POLICE COMMITTEE

Thursday, 20 September 2018

Minutes of the meeting of the Police Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd
Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Thursday, 20 September 2018 at 11.00 am

Present

Members:

Deputy James Thomson (Deputy Chairman) Alderman Alison Gowman

Nicholas Bensted-Smith
Deputy Keith Bottomley

Tijs Broeke

Alderman Emma Edhem

In Attendance

Officers:
John Barradell

Oliver Bolton
George Fraser
Craig Spencer
Chandni Tanna
Jaysen Sharpe
Peter Kane
Philip Gregory
lan Dyson
Jane Gyford
Kam Dhaliwal
Martin O'Regan
Joanne Eales
Hayley Williams
Richard Jeffrey

Alderman lan Luder

Andrew Lentin (External Member)
Deputy Henry Pollard

Deborah Oliver (External Member)

Town Clerk and Chief Executive
Town Clerk's Department

Town Clerk's Department

Town Clerk's Department

Town Clerk's Department
Remembrancer's Department
Chamberlain

Chamberlain's Department
Commissioner, CoLP

Commander of Operations, CoLP
Equality & Inclusion Manager, CoLP
City of London Police

ColLP

CoLP

Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from the Chairman, Simon Duckworth and Christopher
Hayward.

In the absence of the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman took the chair for the
meeting.

The Deputy Chairman welcomed new external member Deborah Oliver to the
Committee for her first meeting.



MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations.

MINUTES
The Committee considered the minutes from the last meeting, held on 12 July
2018.

It was noted that the Deputy Director of Finance was present at the previous
meeting and would be added to the list of attendees.

The Deputy Chairman noted that some minor amendments were required
under item 10.

The Committee congratulated Alderman Emma Edhem on her recent election
to the Court of Alderman.

The Deputy Chairman noted that the appointment of a new external member
had been completed and thanked all those involved in the process.

RESOLVED - That the minutes be approved, pending minor amendments.

OUTSTANDING REFERENCES
The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk which set out
Outstanding References from previous meetings of the Committee.

OR1 - Barbican CCTV

The Deputy Chairman asked for an expected delivery time for this action. The
Commissioner explained that it would be delayed pending the delayed
completion of Crossrail and subsequent pedestrian flow analysis required. A
Member suggested that a deadline of March 2020 be added to this action and it
was agreed.

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk that updated Members on
any actions taken under delegated authority and urgency procedures since the
last meeting.

Formation of the Police Accommodation Working Party

The Town Clerk explained that the first meeting of the Police Accommodation
Working Party had taken place that morning, and that some amendments to its
terms of reference were proposed. It was agreed to include additional
paragraphs 4e and 4f.

The Deputy Chairman reiterated that the central objective of the working party
was to ensure that the Capital Buildings Committee was given adequate
awareness of CoLP’s requirements.



The Deputy Chairman noted that the plan was to hold Working Party meetings
on the morning of each Police Committee in future, though requested that an
additional meeting date be added in December, just prior to the Christmas
break.

The Deputy Chairman requested that an extended joint report of the
Commissioner and City Surveyor be produced for future meetings of the
working party that covered the following:

i. Decant
ii. Force Requirements
iii. Timeline of Key Issues

The Deputy Chairman requested that the Terms of Reference be circulated to
Members of the Capital Buildings Committee (1)

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT TO JUNE 2018

Members received a report of the Commissioner of Police that provided
Members with an update on the CoLP’s financial forecast at Q1 in relation to
the approved Budget.

The Commissioner explained that a sequencing issue relating to the payment
of grants for the Economic Crime directorate’s Funded Units meant that the out
turn shown in table 1 for ECD Funded Units was only temporary as the grants
are always paid in arrears. It was noted that this would always be the case.

The Commissioner explained that there would be discussion with the
Chamberlain over retention of capital spend within the budget.

The Commissioner commented that the Interim Finance Director was in post,
the accountancy team was fully-staffed and he was therefore currently happy
with CoLP’s situation in Q1 and with regards to future financial planning.

The Chamberlain confirmed that he was working closely with the Commissioner
to solidify numbers over the next quarter, though noted that there remained
concerns to be addressed in relation to testing the assumptions for the MTFP.
He noted that there had been a small underspend at Q1 — any additional
underspend in year would help to reduce the rundown in reserves, which could
then be used to help to address the budget gap in 2019/20.

The Chamberlain explained that the City of London Corporation Police
Authority had appointed Alistair Cook as Interim Head of Finance, bringing with
him experience working for both the British Transport Police Authority and the
Home Office.

Members suggested that Table 1 of the report, that summarised the financial
outturn at Q1, required further information to be useful. They proposed that it



10.

include six columns reporting the Budget, Expenditure and Net figures for both
Q1 and the year going forward. (2)

Discussion took place on senior officer roles within the authority.

A Member queried the reference in paragraph 21 of the report that suggested
there would be a “minor” revision to the budget for the year 2018/19 for
maintenance of the police estate. The Director of Estates and Support
Services explained that this related to Health and Safety requirements on the
sites and, subject to the Decant programme, would amount to a sum of
approximately £120,000. The Deputy Chairman noted that this issue should be
monitored by the Performance and Resource Management Sub-Committee.

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

RIVER CAMERAS PROJECT
The Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police that updated
them on the River Cameras Project.

A Member queried whether the project validity required review considering its
long-term nature. The Member asked whether it would be possible to identify
current trends for suicide hotspots and take these into account when
considering further developments on such a costly project. The Deputy
Chairman agreed that this would be a logical approach and the Commander of
Operations and Security confirmed that such analysis would determine the
project scope.

A Member requested that this report be submitted to the Health and Wellbeing
Board for their information. (3)

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

THE OFFENSIVE WEAPONS BILL
The Committee received a report of the Remembrancer that updated Members
on the Offensive Weapons Bill to Parliament.

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

THE COUNTER-TERRORISM AND BORDER SECURITY BILL
The Committee received a report of the Remembrancer that updated Members
on the Counter-Terrorism and Border Security Bill to Parliament.

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

COLP & BTP CUSTODY S22A COLLABORATION AGREEMENT

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police that sought
Members approval of a mutual custody collaboration agreement between the
City of London Police and the British Transport Police. This was further to a
report submitted to the Committee in May 2018.



11.

RESOLVED - That Members instruct the Comptroller and City Solicitor to sign
the agreement on behalf of the Police Authority subject to the negotiation of
suitable terms.

EQUALITY AND INCLUSION UPDATE

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police that provided
Members with an update on equality and inclusion related activities conducted
by the force since the previous report in April 2018.

The Commissioner noted the Assistant Commissioner’s apologies as he was
attending an IOPC stakeholders’ meeting.

The Deputy Chairman noted that diversity engagement with youth programmes
was very important.

The Special Interest Area Lead for Equality, Diversity and Human Rights
thanked Lucy Sandford, the Committee’s previous lead in this area, for her
detailed handover and for setting up the City of London Youth Forum, which
would provide a platform for people aged 13-19 to have their say on the
services available to them in the City of London.

The Special Interest Area Lead also thanked the Equality and Inclusion
Manager for personally attending the meeting as she had achieved a significant
amount of progress since taking on the role.

The Special Interest Area Lead asked, in reference to paragraph 3 of the
report, when the Independent Advisory Group (IAG) and Community Scrutiny
Group (CSG) would likely be merged into a unified City of London Police
Community Group (CPCG). The Commissioner explained that once the
outcome of the ongoing review was known, then a timeline for implementation
would be brought back to Members as part of the next regular Community
Engagement update. (4)

The Special Interest Area Lead asked if the community engagement review
would endeavour to attract City workers to the new group as well as City
residents. The Equality and Inclusion Manager explained that a recruitment
campaign was underway and that the review would look to target everyone,
including small and large businesses.

A Member noted that a lot of work was being undertaken in this area and
requested an update from the Commissioner on recruitment. The
Commissioner explained that the National College of Policing was looking at
the issue of routes into Policing as there was concern amongst police chiefs
over accessibility. He explained that the conclusion of this would likely be
made in Q1 of 2019.

A Member noted the table illustrating gender pay gaps showed that there were
seemingly significant gaps and asked how these compared to other Police
Forces. The Equality and Inclusion Manager explained that approximately 75%
of officers were male and 25% were female and these were in line with the



12.

national guidelines. They explained that, as noted by Members, previously an
error had meant the figures had been misrepresented to the Committee, but
that CoLP were the second-best ranked Police Force nationally in terms of
gender pay equality.

A Member noted that, without the numbers of individuals in each gender
quoted, the table was of little use. It was noted that this was the format that
employers had been asked to present the data.

A Member asked about BAME recruitment comparisons with other forces and
the Equality and Inclusion Manager explained that, although CoLP were ranked
second-best in terms of gender pay equality, they needed to improve
recruitment of BAME and were working with the staff support networks to
reinvigorate efforts.

A Member asked if the civilian staff gender pay gap data was available. The
Equality and Inclusion Manager explained that this had been requested from
CoLC though had still not been received. A Member noted that it had been
difficult to obtain any data from HR and suggested that a representative might
attend the Committee meeting in future. The Town Clerk noted that there had
been recent challenges in identifying the exact role and position of the Police
Authority within the City of London Corporation, noting CoLP’s financial
administration as an example of this. He noted that staff support networks
were separate between CoLC and CoLP and there would be a paper submitted
to develop the Police Authority to enhance collaboration.

The Commissioner undertook to provide the civilian staff gender pay gap data
to Members as soon as it was available via the Equality and Inclusion Manager.

(5)
RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

SPECIAL INTEREST AREA UPDATES
The Committee heard verbal updates from the Special Interest Area Leads.

12.1  SIA Update - Business Improvement & Change and Performance &
Risk Management

This item was taken in the non-public session, following item 22.
12.2 SIA Update - Road Safety and Casualty Reduction

The Committee heard a verbal update from the SIA Lead for Road Safety and
Casualty Reduction.

The SIA Lead explained that there was renewed enthusiasm in this area. They
had met with the lead CoLP officers this morning and were very impressed with
their level of engagement. The Member explained that the work was largely
aligned to the NPCC guidelines and national initiatives, giving examples such
as work around the use of mobile phones by drivers that was funded and



13.

14.

tasked by Transport for London, highlighting their strong and active
relationship.

The SIA Lead explained that Project Servator was being linked more with roads
policing.

The SIA Lead explained that it had been proposed that cycle officers could be
reinstated with a holistic approach that covered a range of areas from cyclists’
behaviour to bicycle thefts.

A Member noted the rising number of complaints relating to cyclists’ behaviour
and asked if there was any attempt to increase visibility of Police Officers. The
Member noted an area near Cheapside where cyclists often crossed the
pavement causing disruption to pedestrians. The Commissioner noted that the
specific area in question was a “dual-use” path that required improved markings
to ensure greater visibility by pedestrians.

The Member also referenced an annex submitted to the recent Bank on Safety
report that stated that 1 in 8 collisions reported were between cyclists and
pedestrians. He noted that pedestrians were a key priority as they made up
90% of road and walkway users in the City of London. He asked if there might
be a joint paper produced on cycling behaviour. The Commissioner noted the
Members concerns but commented that pedestrians were also as culpable in a
significant number of accidents that take place through inattention to their
surroundings and emphasised the importance of recognising that the City’s
streets, particularly around Cheapside, are very busy. He explained that road
safety would form an element within the wider transform programme, but it
would be subject to resource capability. He noted that specifically tasked units
often risk becoming too narrowly focussed on a single area and that all officers
were currently permitted to use bicycles available should they choose.

The Commander of Operations and Security explained that in the new Force
priorities, Road Safety would fall within the scope of Vulnerability and noted that
it was a dedicated strand within the cross-cutting scheme of the Vulnerability
Working Group. They explained that the Corporation was also part of this
group which was very active.

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE

Government Consultation on Cycling Offences

A Member noted that a government consultation was taking place on new
cycling offences and asked if there was facility to provide a response in
consultation with the Police. The Remembrancer noted the Member’s query
and agreed to feed back with a response in due course. (6)

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
The Town Clerk noted that Deborah Oliver had illustrated her interest in joining
the Professional Standards and Integrity Sub-Committee, in light of the vacancy



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

for a Police Committee Member that remained for 2018/19. The Deputy
Chairman motioned to appoint Deborah Oliver to the Sub-Committee and it was
agreed.

RESOLVED - That Deborah Oliver be appointed to the Professional Standards
and Integrity Sub-Committee for the ensuing year.

The Deputy Chairman noted that Tijs Broeke had illustrated his interest in
representing the Police Committee on the Cyber Strategy Working Group that
had recently been created. The Deputy Chairman motioned to appoint Tijs
Broeke to the Working Group and it was agreed.

RESOLVED - That Tijs Broeke be appointed to the Cyber Strategy Working
Group.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part |
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item No. Paragraph(s) in Schedule 12A
16-23 3
21 5

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
The Committee considered the non-public minutes of the last meeting, held on
12 July 2018.

RESOLVED - That the minutes be approved pending minor amendments.

NON-PUBLIC OUTSTANDING REFERENCES
The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk that provided Members
with a summary of the outstanding actions from previous meetings.

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

NON-PUBLIC REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk that advised Members on
the action taken under delegated authority, in consultation with the Chairman
and Deputy Chairman, to the Town Clerk since the last meeting.

RESOLVED - That the report be received.

ITEM WITHDRAWN
This item was withdrawn from the agenda at the request of the report author.



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

POLICE ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY - DECANT CAR PARKING
GATEWAY 3 ISSUES REPORT

The Committee received a joint report of the City Surveyor and the Director of
Community and Children’s Services that sought Members approval in relation
to the decant car parking solution.

RESOLVED - That the report be received and Members agree to the
recommendations.

ACTION AND KNOW FRAUD CENTRE - CONTRACT SERVICE BUDGET
The Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police that sought
Members’ approvals in relation to the Action and Know Fraud Centre.

RESOLVED - That Members noted the report and agreed to the
recommendations.

DEMAND AND VFM / TRANSFORM UPDATE
The Committee received a report of the Commissioner that updated Members
on CoLP’s Transform Programme.

12.

a) SIA Update - Business Improvement & Change and Performance &
Risk Management
The SIA Lead for Business Improvement & Change and Performance &
Risk Management provided an update to Members.

This item was moved from the public agenda.
RESOLVED - That the report be received.

S22A COLLABORATION AGREEMENT- COVERT HUMAN INTELLIGENCE
SOURCE (CHIS)

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner regarding a national
Collaboration Agreement.

RESOLVED - That the report be received and Members agree to the
recommendations.

APPENDIX ITEM 10 - COLP & BTP CUSTODY S22A COLLABORATION
AGREEMENT
The Committee received a non-public appendix to Item 10.

COMMISSIONER'S UPDATES
The Committee heard a verbal update from the Commissioner on Policing
matters since the last meeting on 12 July 2018.

RESOLVED - That the Commissioner be heard.



26. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

27. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED
There were no items of urgent business.

The meeting ended at 12.59 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: George Fraser
tel. no.: 020 7332 1174
george.fraser@cityoflondon.gov.uk



